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STAFF REPORT 
INFORMATION ONLY  

Toronto Police Services Board:  Request for Increased 
Police Enforcement of Parking Regulations on Bicycle 
Lanes in Toronto 
Date: December 15, 2009 

To: Executive Committee, City of Toronto  

From: Pam McConnell, Acting Chair, Toronto Police Services Board  

 

SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to advise the Executive Committee about the Toronto Police 
Services Board’s response to a request for increased police enforcement of parking 
regulations on bicycle lanes in Toronto.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
There are no financial implications in regard to the receipt of this report.   

ISSUE BACKGROUND 
At its meeting of November 19, 2009, the Toronto Police Services Board (the Board) was 
in receipt of correspondence dated October 30, 2009 from A. Milliken Heisey with regard 
to the need for an increase in the enforcement of parking regulations on bicycle lanes in 
Toronto.  

The Board was also in receipt of correspondence dated November 18, 2009 in which I, as 
the councillor in a downtown ward that has a number of bicycle lanes, indicated my 
support for the recommendations made by Mr. Heisey.  A copy of the correspondence is 
appended to this report for information.    

COMMENTS  

The following persons were in attendance and delivered deputations to the Board:  

 

A. Milliken Heisey 

 

Yvonne Bambrick, Executive Director, Toronto Cyclists Union * 

 

Smokey Dymny  

* written submission also provided; copy on file in the Board office. 
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Following the deputations and a discussion with the Chief of Police regarding this matter, 
the Board approved the following Motions:  

1. THAT the Board receive the deputations, the correspondence from Mr. Heisey 
and the photograph from Mr. Grange and refer them to the Chief of Police, the 
City Executive Committee, the City Manager and the Toronto Cycling Advisory 
Committee;  

2. THAT the Board receive the written submissions and the correspondence from 
Councillor McConnell;  

3. THAT, consistent with the Business Plan priority on traffic and pedestrian safety, 
the Board indicate its support for a more effective strategy to support cycling in 
the City of Toronto, including enhanced enforcement of dedicated bicycle lanes 
and a review of the fines, and request that the Chief work with the City Manager 
to collaboratively address the issues raised and develop a comprehensive strategy 
in partnership;  

4. THAT the Chief provide a report back to the Board on the results of these 
discussions in six months; and  

5. THAT the Chief’s report noted in Motion No. 4 also include the possible changes 
to Service Procedures as they relate to police vehicles and the rules governing 
when it is appropriate to park in or occupy bicycle lanes.  

CONCLUSION  
A copy of Board Minute No. P301/09, in the form attached as Appendix “A”, regarding 
this matter is provided for information.   

A copy of a photograph provided by Mr. Grange regarding the cycling system in Utrecht, 
The Netherlands, is attached as Appendix “B”.   

CONTACT 
Alok Mukherjee, Chair 
Toronto Police Services Board  
Telephone No. 416-808-8080 
Fax No. 416-808-8082        
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SIGNATURE     

_______________________________ 
Pam McConnell 
Acting Chair, Toronto Police Services Board    

ATTACHMENT  

Appendix A – Board Minute No. P301/09 
Appendix B – Photograph circulated by Board Member Hamlin Grange    

cc. Mr. Cam Weldon, Acting Deputy City Manager and Chief Financial Officer 
Councillor A. A. (Adrian) Heaps, Chair of the Toronto Cycling Committee   

A: parking regulations on bicycle lanes.doc   
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Appendix A  

THIS IS AN EXTRACT FROM THE MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC MEETING OF THE 
TORONTO POLICE SERVICES BOARD HELD ON NOVEMBER 19, 2009   

#P301. REQUEST FOR INCREASED POLICE ENFORCEMENT OF PARKING 
REGULATIONS ON BICYCLE LANES IN TORONTO   

The Board was in receipt of the attached correspondence dated October 30, 2009 from A. 
Milliken Heisey with regard to the need for an increase in the enforcement of parking regulations 
on bicycle lanes in Toronto.  

The Board was also in receipt of correspondence dated November 18, 2009 from Pam 
McConnell, Councillor and Vice-Chair of the Board.  A copy of Councillor McConnell’s 
correspondence is appended to this Minute for information.  

Mr. Heisey was in attendance and delivered a deputation with respect to his correspondence.  

The following were also in attendance and delivered deputations:  

 

Yvonne Bambrick, Executive Director, Toronto Cyclists Union * 

 

Smokey Dymny  

* written submission also provided; copy on file in the Board office.  

Dr. Mukherjee advised that the Board had received 406 written submissions from citizens who 
supported Mr. Heisey’s request for improvements to the enforcement of parking regulations on 
the bicycle lanes.  The Board office printed and responded to the first 155 written submissions; 
copies on file in the Board office.  

Chief Blair explained the Service’s role in enforcing the parking regulations and said that two 
members of Traffic Services are involved with the City’s cycling committee and that the Traffic 
Services-Community Policing Liaison Committee includes representatives from the cycling 
organizations.  

Chief Blair also explained the reasons why emergency services vehicles should not be prohibited 
from parking in bicycle lanes when they are responding to emergencies.  The Board noted that 
accessible service vehicles, such as Wheel-Trans, should be permitted to stop in bicycle lanes.  

In response to comments about the dangers that cyclists experience while cycling on Toronto 
roads, Chief Blair also said that cyclists have a responsibility to stop at signalized intersections 
and to yield to vehicles turning right.   
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The Board noted that significant improvements are required to the city’s infrastructure in order to 
facilitate an efficient cycling system in Toronto.  Board Member Hamlin Grange circulated a 
photograph he took recently of a cycling system in Utrecht, The Netherlands, as one example of 
an efficient urban cycling system.  

The Board approved the following Motions:  

1. THAT the Board receive the deputations, the correspondence from Mr. Heisey and 
the photograph from Mr. Grange and refer them to the Chief of Police, the City 
Executive Committee, the City Manager and the Toronto Cycling Advisory 
Committee;  

2. THAT the Board receive the written submissions and the correspondence from 
Councillor McConnell;  

3. THAT, consistent with the Business Plan priority on traffic and pedestrian safety, 
the Board indicate its support for a more effective strategy to support cycling in the 
City of Toronto, including enhanced enforcement of dedicated bicycle lanes and a 
review of the fines, and request that the Chief work with the City Manager to 
collaboratively address the issues raised and develop a comprehensive strategy in 
partnership;  

4. THAT the Chief provide a report back to the Board on the results of these 
discussions in six months; and  

5. THAT the Chief’s report noted in Motion No. 4 also include the possible changes to 
Service Procedures as they relate to police vehicles and the rules governing when it 
is appropriate to park in or occupy bicycle lanes.   
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Appendix B  

Photograph circulated by Board Member Hamlin Grange regarding the cycling system in 
Utrecht, The Netherlands.   

 


